
 

 
             CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE       

                     BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA        

CPFR Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda – February 8, 2021   Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Date: February 8, 2021 
Place: Zoom Webinar  
Time: 5:00 p.m. 
             
 

1. Call to Order 
 

A. Roll call 
 

 

2. Approval of Agenda  
 

A. Pg 1 /Agenda 
 
 

3. Pg 3 /2020 Strategic Plan Update – Don Bivins/BC Jackson 
 
 

4. Public Comment (for items not specifically listed on the Agenda) 
Individuals wishing to comment that are calling in by phone, please press *9 to raise 
your hand.  If connecting by computer, please click the “raise hand” feature. You will 
be notified when it is your turn to speak. Before commenting, please identify yourself 
for the record. You will have three minutes to address the Board.  
 

 

5. Consent Agenda (Single Motion)  
 

A. Excused Absences:   
B. Pg 22 /Minutes: Regular Board Meeting of January 25, 2021    
C. Pg 25 /Approval of:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Pg 42 /For Informational Purposes Only - The following electronic payments totaling $3,139.007.89 

are included in Warrants noted above:  
 Accounts Payable EFT numbered 10683 to 10710 -$45,801.93 (Included in A/P Warrant 55704) 
 Accounts Payable EFT numbered 10711 to 10716 - $863,508.12 (Included in A/P Warrant 55724) 
 Accounts Payable EFT numbered 10717 to 10743 - $46,986.75 (Included in A/P Warrant 55736) 
 Employee EFT Contributions/Deductions including all taxes & retirement numbered 50131 to 

50439 -$2,182,711.09 (Included in A/P Warrant 55726) 
 

 

6. Unfinished Business (Second Reading and Final Action) 
 
 

7. New Business (First Reading) 
 

A. Pg 69 /Resolution No. 21-01 Region 5 Hazard Mitigation Plan – AC Kent 

Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 55703 to 55722 totaling $ 106,406.93 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 55723 to 55734 totaling $ 4,402,614.29 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 55735 to 55758 totaling $ 425,612.90 
Net Payroll Warrants Numbered 107494 to 107500 totaling $ 33,055.70 
Net Payroll Warrants Numbered 55406 to 55406 totaling $ (475.98) 

GRAND TOTAL $ 4,967,213.84 

1



 

 
             CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE       

                     BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA        

CPFR Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda – February 8, 2021   Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 

8. Considerations and Requests 
 

A. Pg 72 /Fire Chief Selection Process – Chair Holm 
 
 

9. Staff, Local, Firefighter's Association and Fire Chief Reports 
 

A. Pg 73 /Training – AC Juarez 
i. Pg 74 /2020 Training Hours Report 

 
 

B. Pg 76 /Health & Safety – AC McKenzie 
 

 

C. Pg 78 /Logistics – AC Stueve 
 
 

D. Pg 79 /Human Resources – HRD Washo 
 
 

E. Pg 80 /DC Operations – DC Stueve 
 

 

F. Pg 81 /Fire Chief – Chief Olson 
 

 

10. Correspondence 
 

A. Pg 83 /Employee Recognition 
 
 

11. Commissioner Comments  
 
 

12. Executive Session under RCW 42.30.110(1)(g) to review the performance of a 
public employee.  
 
 

13. Adjournment 

2



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:  February 8, 2021  

Item Title:   2020 Strategic Plan Update  

Attachments:   Powerpoint Slides 

Submitted by:  Chief Olson 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

First reading  
Second reading  
Motion to approve  
For information only  
Other:  

 
SUMMARY:     
 
Don Bivins of ESCI and BC Jackson will be present at the meeting to provide the 2020 
Strategic Plan Update. Copies of the PowerPoint slides are attached for your reference.   
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

3



 

  
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

 

 
 

 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 

Washington 

January 2021 

2020 STRATEGIC PLAN UPDATE 

4



 Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Strategic Plan Update, 2020   

  PAGE 1  

Our Mission: 

Effectively respond, continuously improve, compassionately serve. 

Our Vision: 
Dedicated to internal and external customer service 
Committed to professional development 
Innovative and adaptable 
Determined to meet or exceed industry best practices 
Supporting of a culture of health, wellness, and safety 
Committed to systems and processes that are consistent and provide accountability 
Financially sustainable 

Our Values: 

Commitment to Excellence 

Develop and maintain technical proficiency 
Utilize multidirectional, clear communication  
Exemplify a strong work ethic 
Demonstrate dependability 
Promote positive culture 
Show pride in self, organization, and profession  

Respect 

Be tactful—right time, place, and topic 
Use candor—timely and to the point 
Talk only about what you know to be true 
Be professional 
Discuss principles, not politics or personality 

Trust(worthiness) 

Demonstrate confidence in each other through acknowledgment and feedback 
Assume positive intent 
Establish and maintain open communication 

Integrity 

Do the right thing even when no one is watching 
Do what you said you would do 
Own mistakes and accept feedback 

Competence and professionalism 

Be consistent 
Be a lifelong learner 
Adhere to appearance and conduct standards 
Hold each other accountable 
Actively mentor others 

Compassion and selflessness 

Demonstrate empathy  
Actively listen 
Place duty before self 

5



 Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Strategic Plan Update, 2020   

  PAGE 2  

Commit to humanity and dignity 

Table of Contents 

Table of Contents ........................................................................................................ 2 

2020 Strategic Plan Update ............................................................................................ 3 

Plan Survey .......................................................................................................................................... 3 

Review of Plan Progress ........................................................................................................................ 3 

New & Deleted Goals/Objectives .................................................................................................................. 4 
Communication ........................................................................................................................................... 4 
Obstacles .................................................................................................................................................... 4 

2020 Status & Accountability Worksheet ........................................................................... 5 

Initiative #1: Culture and Communication .............................................................................................. 5 

Goal 1A: Improve internal, organizational communication ............................................................................. 5 
Goal 1B: Develop an appropriate department culture .................................................................................... 5 
Goal 1C: Understand and improve interpersonal dynamics ............................................................................ 6 
Goal 1D: Improve member recognition within the District .............................................................................. 6 
Goal 1E: Adopt relevant, contemporary policies and standards that are complied with ................................... 7 

Initiative #2: Financial Sustainability ..................................................................................................... 7 

Goal 2A: Ensure financial and operational stability of equipment and facilities ............................................... 7 
Goal 2B: Review current and alternative revenue sources .............................................................................. 8 
Goal 2C: Conduct robust financial forecasting and semi-annually review economic outlook ............................ 8 

Initiative #3: Professional Development ................................................................................................ 9 

Goal 3A: Develop and adopt a succession plan with contracted professional assistance .................................. 9 
Goal 3B: Create and implement career paths ................................................................................................. 9 
Goal 3C: Develop and rollout position-specific enhancements ...................................................................... 10 

Initiative #4: Prevention, Education, & Operations ............................................................................... 10 

Goal 4A: Reduce community risk ................................................................................................................ 10 
Goal 4B: Develop District-wide community prevention and education program ............................................ 11 
Goal 4C: Influence community planning within the District .......................................................................... 11 
Goal 4D: Develop and implement a District Master Plan .............................................................................. 12 
Goal 4E: Develop and implement a District EMS Delivery System Plan ......................................................... 12 
Goal 4F: Develop and implement a Fleet Services Business Practices Plan .................................................... 13 

Initiative #5: Marketing and Outreach ................................................................................................. 13 

Goal 5A: Develop and adopt a Comprehensive Community Outreach Plan ................................................... 13 
Goal 5B: Improve the District’s media presence ........................................................................................... 14 
Goal 5C: Improve roles and relationships with allied government agencies and entities ................................. 15 
Goal 5D: Maintain citizen support ............................................................................................................... 15 

Initiative #6: Regionalization and Cooperation..................................................................................... 15 

Goal 6A: Create regional efficiencies ........................................................................................................... 15 
Goal 6B: Develop consistency of approach, configuration, or operation among regional partners .................. 16 
Goal 6C: Increase Central Pierce Fire & Rescue influence regionally .............................................................. 16 

 

6



 Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Strategic Plan Update, 2020   

  PAGE 3  

2020 Strategic Plan Update 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue remains committed to the strategic planning process, but has had to make 

adjustments due to the extraordinary challenges created by COVID-19. The pandemic has limited some 

of the initiatives and goals of the plan for the following reasons: 

1. Constraints on in-person activities by groups, which was limited by order of the Governor of 
the State of Washington; 

2. Workload constraints on the organization caused by COVID-19 planning, preparation, and 
response; 

3. Limitations on potential partner agencies for similar reasons as listed above; 

4. Timing—some goals are reasonable to pursue during normal times, but may appear trivial 
given the larger seriousness of daily operations during the COVID-19 pandemic. 

ESCI has virtually attended scheduled sessions with department leadership, the strategic plan initiative 

managers, and the internal planning team. The discussions included identifying obstacles 

(predominantly COVID-19) and addressing the impact of the Fire Chief’s expected retirement at the end 

of 2021 on the remaining elements of the current Strategic Plan. This update is the second annual review 

of the Strategic Plan. 

PLAN SURVEY 

The Fire Chief felt—and ESCI agreed—that department personnel may be burned out by surveys 

soliciting their perspectives on the plan communication, the workplace culture, and generally their 

feelings about a variety of organizational dynamics. The decision was made to defer the plan progress 

survey to the subsequent year's update.  

REVIEW OF PLAN PROGRESS 

ESCI met with the Fire Chief and Strategic Plan Coordinator on October 13, 2020, the Initiative Managers 

on December 15, 2020, and a scheduled meeting with the Internal Planning Team on January 7, 2021. 

The last meeting had no attendance from planning team members who had not already attended the 

Initiative Manager meeting. The lack of attendance may indicate that the remaining internal planning 

team members were satisfied with the progress of the Strategic Plan and had no further concerns, were 

well informed of the efforts in place and therefore had no consequential input, or presumed COVID-19 

interrupted the Strategic Plan to some extent and engaging in the evaluation of plan progress would be 

fruitless. Ambivalence could also be a reason, although ESCI saw no evidence of that. 

The primary takeaways from the Initiative Managers meeting were as follows: 

• A strong push for 2021 goal accomplishment. 

• Identify initiatives and goals that should be intentionally paused due to the COVID-19 
pandemic, fiscal constraints, or political obstacles. 

• Plan for the transition to new leadership (due to the Fire Chief’s upcoming retirement) and its 
impact on the remaining elements of the strategic plan. 

7



 Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Strategic Plan Update, 2020   

  PAGE 4  

New & Deleted Goals/Objectives  

No new goals or objectives were identified. No goals or objectives were deleted, but some were paused 

for 2021. The rationale for these pauses is included with each goal or objective paused. The status of the 

goals and objectives are reflected in the following 2020 Status & Accountability Worksheet. 

Communication 

Communicating the importance and status of the plan is important. It appears that communication about 

the plan has been robust, but ESCI cautions that continuous communication about the plan requires 

relentless commitment. Momentum is difficult to regain once lost. Again, ESCI has no evidence to believe 

that communication is waning.  

Obstacles 

Obstacles fall into three categories: fiscal constraints, political constraints, and COVID-19 constraints. 

These obstacles are further discussed below.  

Fiscal Constraints 

• New employee pauses, delay rollout of succession plan. Chief Olson has communicated with 

Battalion Chief Jackson the paused budget items, which will be communicated to the key 

stakeholders of the Strategic Plan. 

• Preventative Maintenance Schedule—no funds have been assigned for consultants to evaluate 

facilities and identify what projects need to be accomplished. Some large projects have been 

identified. The internal plan is complete, but there is no recurring plan for future facility 

maintenance. 

• Chief Olson has indicated that this is a good opportunity to address one-time investments, 

given that the fleet is in exceptional condition. 

Political Constraints 

• Fire Marshal services, Master Builders, and Pierce County dynamics render such goals and plans 

unworkable during the current climate. 

• Opportunities for other partnership areas may be possible locally with changes in leadership 

within the region. 

COVID-19 Constraints 

• Initiative #6: Regionalization & Cooperation has been intentionally placed on pause due to the 

logistical issues associated with meeting with other agencies in the region. The Initiative 

Managers have been moved to assist on Initiative #3: Professional Development. 

 

 

8



 Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Strategic Plan Update, 2020 

  PAGE 5  

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 
2020 Status & Accountability Worksheet 

Timeline: Critical = < 90 days; Short = 1 year; Mid = 1–3 years; Long = 3–5 years 

Implementation Timeline Status: Not Started – On Target – Delayed/Paused – Behind Schedule – Ahead of Schedule  

Initiatives/Goals/Objectives 

INITIATIVE #1: CULTURE AND COMMUNICATION Managers: Capt. Ferrier and Lt. Kamke 

Goal 1A: Improve internal, organizational 
communication 

Task Team Timeline Status Notes 

Obj. 1: Survey all personnel to determine what 
communication processes or efforts would 
help them be more informed. 

Communication  Critical  Complete Survey completed and distributed. 

Obj. 2: Build a system of communication based 
upon analysis of survey results. 

Communication  Short  Complete Developed. 

Obj. 3: Implement communication system (see 
Objective 1A2) and provide a continuous 
feedback loop. 

Communication  Short, ongoing Complete Video updates and Chief station visits. 

Obj. 4: Develop mechanism to include day shift 
admin support and community service 
volunteers in communication. 

Communication Short, ongoing NEW 
Created 9-24-19 during update. No 
new progress on this objective. 

Goal 1B: Develop an appropriate department 
culture 

Task Team Timeline Status Notes 

Obj. 1: Identify the current cultural climate through 
employee input. 

Culture  Critical  Complete 
Survey completed. Team evaluating 
survey results. Presented to staff. 

Obj. 2: Work with outside consultant to help identify 
the current culture. 

Culture Short  Complete Nash Consulting retained. 

Obj. 3: Create and implement a plan to shift culture 
based on input. 

Culture Short, ongoing Complete Nash Training in progress.  

Obj. 4: Educate and instill with members the 
department’s mission, vision, and values. 

Culture Short, ongoing Complete 
Chief’s weekly e-mails, Chief’s station 
visits. 

Obj. 5: Re-evaluate department culture 
continuously. 

Culture Short, ongoing 50% 
Will re-survey personnel after Nash 
principles have been implemented. 

9



 Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Strategic Plan Update, 2020 

  PAGE 6  

Initiatives/Goals/Objectives 

Goal 1C: Understand and improve interpersonal 
dynamics 

Task Team Timeline Status Notes 

Obj. 1: Mandatory human relations training for all 
supervisors. 

Human 
Relations  

Short  Complete 
Added questions to culture survey. 
Found Instructor. 

Obj. 2: Mandatory conflict resolution training for all 
personnel. 

Human 
Relations 

Short, ongoing Complete 
Found Instructor. Secured dates 
(December 17 & 18). 

Obj. 3: Revise/Update the member code of conduct. 
Human 

Relations  
Mid  Paused COVID-19 Pause. 

Obj. 4: Conduct periodic outside evaluation of 
interpersonal dynamics within the District. 

Human 
Relations 

Long, ongoing Paused COVID-19 Pause. 

 Goal 1D: Improve member recognition within the 
District 

Task Team Timeline Status Notes 

Obj. 1: Overhaul and balance out the current 
recognition committee. 

Recognition  Mid  50% 

Current recognition committee has 
office personnel, chiefs, firefighters/ 
paramedics, and added a member 
from the volunteer group. Getting 
new perspectives and ideas for 
employee recognition and how it can 
be more meaningful. 

Obj. 2: Establish and publish parameters for 
employee recognition. 

Recognition Mid 50% 

Developing parameters for 
recognition purposes; currently 
looking into challenge coins instead of 
plaques. 

Obj. 3: Identify the venue to hold annual formal 
recognition event. 

Recognition Mid Paused 

COVID-19 Pause—Possibly 
incorporate awards into a CPFR 25th 
Year Anniversary event in October (if 
COVID allows). The event would be 
held at Station House 726. 

10



 Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Strategic Plan Update, 2020 

  PAGE 7  

Initiatives/Goals/Objectives 

Goal 1E: Adopt relevant, contemporary policies 
and standards that are complied with 

Task Team Timeline Status Notes 

Obj. 1: Audit policies and procedures to determine 
relevance. 

Standards  Long  50% 
Progress made and meetings set to 
accomplish Policies and SOPs changes 
by the end of 2021. 

Obj. 2: Modify policies and procedures as indicated 
in Objective 1E1. 

Standards  Long  25% 
Progress made and meetings set to 
accomplish Policies and SOPs changes 
by the end of 2021.  

Obj. 3: Develop process to vet new proposed 
policies. 

Standards  Long  50% 
Progress made and meetings set to 
accomplish Policies and SOPs changes 
by the end of 2021.  

Obj. 4: Implement and communicate policy and 
procedure changes through a 
communication plan. 

Standards  Long  Complete 
TS Policy Changes/Division Briefs via 
video. 

Obj. 5: Train leadership to coach and develop 
leadership compliance. 

Standards  Long  50% Nash Consulting Training (April 2020). 

 

Initiatives/Goals/Objectives 

INITIATIVE #2: FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY Manager: Tanya Robacker 

Goal 2A: Ensure financial and operational stability 
of equipment and facilities 

Task Team Timeline Status Notes 

Obj. 1: Conduct a process to secure a consultant for 
infrastructure evaluation. 

Facilities & 
Equip.  

Short  50% 
Securing consultant to develop scope 
for RFID, barcoding, inventory 
management. 

Obj. 2: Develop a preventive maintenance schedule 
for buildings and properties. 

Facilities & 
Equip.  

Mid  Paused Financial Constraints—Paused. 

Obj. 3: Identify an assets, inventory, and 
maintenance tracking system. 

Facilities & 
Equip.  

Short  10% 
Securing consultant to develop scope 
for RFID, barcoding, inventory 
management. 

Obj. 4: Assess viability of the training center on 
Canyon Rd. 

Facilities & 
Equip.  

Short Paused  Financial Constraints—Paused. 

11



 Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Strategic Plan Update, 2020 

  PAGE 8  

Initiatives/Goals/Objectives 

Goal 2B: Review current and alternative revenue 
sources 

Task Team Timeline Status Notes 

Obj. 1: Acquire an external review of current and 
alternative funding sources. 

Revenue  Mid  Complete 
GEMT was the only reliable source 
identified. 

Obj. 2: Explore implementation of alternative 
revenue sources (e.g., impact fees, MVA 
spills, training facilities/marketing, outside 
fleet maintenance, user fees [nursing homes, 
etc.], grants/grant writing). 

Revenue  Mid  85% 

Evaluating EF Recovery-implemented 
at company level. System proved 
unworkable. Reduced scope will be 
used on large MVAs with BC gathering 
info., Impact Fees (SEPA) continue to 
work with PC Council to implement. 

Goal 2C: Conduct robust financial forecasting and 
semi-annually review economic outlook 

Task Team Timeline Status Notes 

Obj. 1: Develop a plan to use forecasted financial 
information to guide the budget. 

Finance  Mid  Complete Ongoing. 

Obj. 2: Develop a 3-to-5-year economic outlook 
plan. 

Finance  Long, ongoing Complete 

Budget format developed, 5-year 
forecast developed, finance 
committee created to evaluate future 
spending and capital needs, Capital 
Facilities Plan being developed. 

Obj. 3: Twice annually review the economic outlook 
plan for relevance and adjust as necessary. 

Finance  Long, ongoing Complete 
Presenting 5-year forecast to Board 
two times annually; will add ERF and 
Capital when complete. 

 

  

12



 Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Strategic Plan Update, 2020 

  PAGE 9  

Initiatives/Goals/Objectives 

INITIATIVE #3: PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT Managers: Assistant Chief Juarez and FF/PM Sobole 

Goal 3A: Develop and adopt a succession plan with 
contracted professional assistance 

Task Team Timeline Status Notes 

Obj. 1: Develop an RFP for outside expertise in 
developing a succession plan for the District. 

Succession Plan Short Pause 
On hold per Chief Olson—financial 
constraints. 

Obj. 2: Hire successful vendor to develop succession 
plan. 

Succession Plan Short Paused  
On hold per Chief Olson—financial 
constraints. 

Obj. 3: Develop a plan for succession within the 
District. 

Succession Plan Short Paused  
On hold per Chief Olson—financial 
constraints. 

Obj. 4: Implement the succession plan within the 
District. 

Succession Plan Mid Paused 
On hold per Chief Olson—financial 
constraints. 

Obj. 5: Periodically review the succession plan for 
success and adjust as necessary. 

Succession Plan Long Paused 
On hold per Chief Olson—financial 
constraints. 

Goal 3B: Create and implement career paths Task Team Timeline Status Notes 

Obj. 1: Investigate current successful models from 
other fire service organizations. 

Career Path  Mid  30% 
Work in progress, have reached out to 
South King, Vancouver. 

Obj. 2: Validate current job descriptions. Career Path  Mid  30% Working with HR. 

Obj. 3: Work and cooperate with the effected locals 
as career paths are developed. 

Career Path  Mid  10% 
Just got a local member on the team, 
meeting scheduled. 

Obj. 4: Identify career enhancements within current 
positions. 

Career Path  Mid  35% 
Positions determined; algorithm built, 
defining what the enhancements look 
like for each position. 

Obj. 5: Define knowledge, skills, and abilities 
necessary for each position. 

Career Path  Mid  30% 
Researching NFPA and local direction, 
KSAs coming along. 

Obj. 6: Access and accomplish formal and informal 
career path education and training. 

Career Path Long    
Work in progress. Have reached out to 
South King, Vancouver. 

13



 Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Strategic Plan Update, 2020 

  PAGE 10  

Initiatives/Goals/Objectives 

Goal 3C: Develop and rollout position-specific 
enhancements 

Task Team Timeline Status Notes 

Obj. 1: For each position, identify key enrichment 
opportunities. 

Enrichment Long  
To be developed once preceding goals 
accomplished. 

Obj. 2: Identify applicable industry standards, 
resources, and affiliations that would be 
beneficial to the position. 

Enrichment Long  
To be developed once preceding goals 
accomplished. 

Obj. 3: Develop and implement a role-specific 
mentorship focused on enrichment. 

Enrichment Long 
 To be developed once preceding goals 

accomplished. 

Obj. 4: Survey participants for improvement 
opportunities for professional development. 

Enrichment Long, ongoing  
To be developed once preceding goals 
accomplished. 

 

Initiatives/Goals/Objectives 

INITIATIVE #4: PREVENTION, EDUCATION, & OPERATIONS Managers: Assistant Chief Overby and Assistant Chief Bouchard 

Goal 4A: Reduce community risk Task Team Timeline Status Notes 

Obj. 1: Identify community risks and based on 
results, determine resource needs. 

Risk Reduction Mid  20% 
4A to be under Public Educator once 
hired. 

Obj. 2: Create a risk reduction plan and implement 
to address risks. 

Risk Reduction Long  20% 
4A to be under Public Educator once 
hired. 

Obj. 3: Educate the community on risk reduction 
strategies. 

Risk Reduction Long, ongoing 20% 
4A to be under Public Educator once 
hired. 

Obj. 4: Evaluate impact of risk reduction program 
on response demand and update risk 
reduction plan annually. 

Risk Reduction Long, ongoing 20% 
4A to be under Public Educator once 
hired. 

14



 Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Strategic Plan Update, 2020 

  PAGE 11  

Initiatives/Goals/Objectives 

Goal 4B: Develop District-wide community 
prevention and education program 

Task Team Timeline Status Notes 

Obj. 1: Obtain a contract with the county similar to 
the contract with the City of Puyallup for 
fire prevention and code enforcement 
services. 

Prevention Long  Paused 
On hold per Chief Olson—political 
constraints. 

Obj. 2: Review current prevention and education 
programs and evaluate effectiveness. Prevention Mid  Paused 

On hold per Chief Olson—political 
constraints. 

Obj. 3: Identify prevention and education needs by 
topic (i.e., What are we solving by teaching? 
Data mining). 

Prevention Mid  Paused 
On hold per Chief Olson—political 
constraints. 

Obj. 4: Identify target audiences (care centers, 
schools, SR centers) based on objective 4B3. Prevention Mid  Paused 

On hold per Chief Olson—political 
constraints. 

Obj. 5: Utilize podcasts and social media to deliver 
prevention and education messages. Prevention 

Short Term, 
ongoing 

Complete Completed/ongoing. 

Goal 4C: Influence community planning within the 
District 

Task Team Timeline Status Notes 

Obj. 1: Work collaboratively with IAFF Local 726 
regarding scope of proposed work and 
working conditions. 

Community 
Planning 

Critical Complete 

Fire Chief is communicating/ 
coordinating with Local 726 to 
influence community planning in the 
County. 

Obj. 2: Develop a concise list of community 
planning issues that need to be addressed. 

Community 
Planning 

Long Pause 
On hold per Chief Olson—political 
constraints. 

Obj. 3: Identify the agencies providing oversight for 
the issues identified in Objective 4C2. 

Community 
Planning 

Long Pause 
On hold per Chief Olson—political 
constraints. 

Obj. 4: Establish and/or build upon relationship 
with each of the agencies identified in 
Objective 4C3. 

Community 
Planning 

Long Pause 
On hold per Chief Olson—political 
constraints. 

15



 Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Strategic Plan Update, 2020 

  PAGE 12  

Initiatives/Goals/Objectives 

Goal 4D: Develop and implement a District Master 
Plan 

Task Team Timeline Status Notes 

Obj. 1: Secure funding to conduct a District Master 
Plan. 

Master Plan  Short  Complete 
This has been approved by the Board 
and is budgeted. 

Obj. 2: Develop a Request for Proposal for a vendor 
to conduct a Master Plan for the District. 

Master Plan Short  50% 
Once EMS study is done, RFP for MP 
to be done in 2022. 

Obj. 3: Select the successful vendor to conduct a 
District Master Plan. 

Master Plan Short  90% 
Prioritized after completion of capital 
facility plan and EMS study. 

Obj. 4: Work with the successful vendor to develop 
the District Master Plan. 

Master Plan Mid  90% 
Capital facility plan completed; pursuit 
of full MP to be done in 2022. 

Obj. 5: Board of Fire Commissioners review, adopt, 
and direct implementation of the District 
Master Plan. 

Master Plan  Long, ongoing   

Goal 4E: Develop and implement a District EMS 
Delivery System Plan 

Task Team Timeline Status Notes 

Obj. 1: Secure funding to conduct a District EMS 
Delivery System Plan. 

EMS Short Complete 
Approved by Board and in 2020 
budget. 

Obj. 2: Develop a Request for Proposal for a vendor 
to conduct an EMS Delivery System Plan for 
the District. 

EMS Short Complete 
RFP not required, but scope of what is 
expected from the vendor is being 
developed. Working on a draft now. 

Obj. 3: Select the successful vendor to conduct an 
EMS Delivery System Plan for the District. 

EMS Short Complete Vendor chosen by Fire Chief. 

Obj. 4: Work with the successful vendor to develop 
the District EMS Delivery System Plan. 

EMS Mid Initiated 
Double Medic Units to be included in 
Study. 

Obj. 5: Board of Fire Commissioners review, adopt, 
and direct implementation of the District 
EMS Delivery System Plan. 

EMS Long, ongoing    

16



 Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Strategic Plan Update, 2020 

  PAGE 13  

Initiatives/Goals/Objectives 

Goal 4F: Develop and implement a Fleet Services 
Business Practices Plan 

Task Team Timeline Status Notes 

Obj. 1: Secure funding to conduct a District Fleet 
Services Business Practices Plan. 

Fleet Services  Mid Paused 
This goal and subordinate objectives is 
on hold and will be revisited in 2022; 
change in fleet status. 

Obj. 2: Develop a Request for Proposal for a vendor 
to conduct a Fleet Services Business 
Practices Plan for the District. 

Fleet Services Mid  Paused 
This goal and subordinate objectives is 
on hold and will be revisited in 2022; 
change in fleet status. 

Obj. 3: Select the successful vendor to conduct a 
District Fleet Services Business Practices 
Plan. 

Fleet Services Mid  Paused 
This goal and subordinate objectives is 
on hold and will be revisited in 2022; 
change in fleet status. 

Obj. 4: Work with the successful vendor to develop 
the District Fleet Services Business Practices 
Plan. 

Fleet Services Mid  Paused 
This goal and subordinate objectives is 
on hold and will be revisited in 2022; 
change in fleet status. 

Obj. 5: Board of Fire Commissioners review, adopt, 
and direct implementation of the District 
Fleet Services Business Practices Plan. 

Fleet Services Long, ongoing Paused 
This goal and subordinate objectives is 
on hold and will be revisited in 2022; 
change in fleet status. 

 

Initiatives/Goals/Objectives 

INITIATIVE #5: MARKETING AND OUTREACH Managers: Capt. Shaw and Capt. Rosenlund 

Goal 5A: Develop and adopt a Comprehensive 
Community Outreach Plan 

Task Team Timeline Status Notes 

Obj. 1: Evaluate the District’s current marketing 
outreach program. 

Community 
Outreach 

Short  25% Updating at the end of March. 

Obj. 2: Survey similar organizations for successful 
community outreach plans and best 
practices. 

Community 
Outreach 

Short  Complete 
Meeting with West Pierce and East 
Pierce. 

Obj. 3: Create and adopt a Community Outreach 
Plan with ongoing evaluation. 

Community 
Outreach 

Mid  25% 
Each quarter, we will focus on a 
different message. 

17



 Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Strategic Plan Update, 2020 

  PAGE 14  

Initiatives/Goals/Objectives 

Obj. 4: Adjust staffing to implement the 
Community Outreach Plan. 

Community 
Outreach 

Long  25% 

Grow to 6–8 firefighters who are tied 
to public education and have first right 
of refusal for overtime. No progress to 
report for 2020. 

Goal 5B: Improve the District’s media presence Task Team Timeline Status Notes 

Obj. 1: Develop the Community and Government 
Relations Officer (CGRO) through job 
shadow with other PIOs, position-specific 
training, and necessary budget/resource 
support. 

Media  Critical  Complete 
CGRO hired, shadowing crews, 
training is ongoing. 

Obj. 2: Research the most effective media outlets, 
including social. 

Media Short  Complete 
Daily news posts from calls, articles in 
TNT, TV interviews on safety, and 
online news and videos. 

Obj. 3: Identify member organizations/associations 
that the CGRO should attend and engage. 

Media Short 95% 
Homeowner groups, civic groups, 
retirement communities, Puyallup PD, 
PCSD. 

Obj. 4: Develop & maintain a media contact list for 
CGRO. 

Media 
Short, ongoing 

95% 
List is built of all TV and print media 
and have built relationships with 
them. 

Obj. 5: Develop and implement a regular, ongoing 
media release schedule and format. 

Media Long, ongoing 95% 
Daily posts on social media and 
interactions with media on daily. 

Obj. 6: Develop metrics to determine effectiveness 
of messaging and delivery mechanism. 

Media Long  75% 
Quarterly message that will go out to 
all stations that will be different each 
quarter. 

18



 Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Strategic Plan Update, 2020 

  PAGE 15  

Initiatives/Goals/Objectives 

Goal 5C: Improve roles and relationships with 
allied government agencies and entities 

Task Team Timeline Status Notes 

Obj. 1: Identify agencies and groups to work with 
strategically. 

Allied Agency  Short  75% 
Work ongoing with Safe Streets, 
Puyallup PD, and PCSD homeless 
division. 

Obj. 2: Assign an appropriate liaison to meet and 
interact with each agency. 

Allied Agency Short 25% 
Adam Rosenlund has been involved 
with our local agencies for many years. 

Obj. 3: Monitor relationship and feedback from 
allied agencies. 

Allied Agency  Short, ongoing 25% 
Need to set up quarterly meetings 
with agencies. 

Goal 5D: Maintain citizen support Task Team Timeline Status Notes 

Obj. 1: Keep community informed utilizing the 
community outreach program. 

District Support  Mid  25% 
Reliant upon Goal 5A and public/ 
community educators. 

Obj. 2: Identify the District’s demographic profile. District Support  Mid  Complete 
The demographic profile has been 
completed and distributed. 

 

Initiatives/Goals/Objectives 

INITIATIVE #6: REGIONALIZATION AND COOPERATION Managers: Assistant Chief Kent, Assistant Chief McKenzie, L726 representative 

Goal 6A: Create regional efficiencies Task Team Timeline Status Notes 

Obj. 1: Investigate established cooperation networks 
with potential regional partner agencies. 

Regionalization Long, ongoing Paused 
On hold per Chief Olson—COVID-19 
Pause. 

Obj. 2: Establish a concise list of mutually beneficial 
opportunities with potential regional 
partners. 

Regionalization Long, ongoing Paused 
On hold per Chief Olson—COVID-19 
Pause. 

Obj. 3: Investigate interest with potential regional 
partnering agencies/entities. 

Regionalization Long Paused 
On hold per Chief Olson—COVID-19 
Pause. 

Obj. 4: Develop, implement, and evaluate 
cooperative efforts with regional partner 
agencies. 

Regionalization Long Paused 
On hold per Chief Olson—COVID-19 
Pause. 

19



 Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Strategic Plan Update, 2020 

  PAGE 16  

Initiatives/Goals/Objectives 

Goal 6B: Develop consistency of approach, 
configuration, or operation among regional 
partners 

Task Team Timeline Status Notes 

Obj. 1: Pursue a regional approach to training with 
potential partners. 

Regionalization 
Task Team, 

Training Chief 
Short  Paused 

On hold per Chief Olson—COVID-19 
Pause. 

Obj. 2: Persuade potential partner agencies of the 
benefit of regional partnerships. 

Regionalization, 
Fire Chief, Local 

726 
Long  Paused 

On hold per Chief Olson—COVID-19 
Pause. 

Obj. 3: Pursue a regional approach to standardized 
operational policies with potential partners. 

Regionalization, 
Fire Chief, Local 

726 
Long  Paused 

On hold per Chief Olson—COVID-19 
Pause. 

Obj. 4: Pursue joint response agreements (e.g., AVL 
dispatch, dropped border response). 

Regionalization, 
Fire Chief, Local 

726 
Long  Paused 

On hold per Chief Olson—COVID-19 
Pause. 

Goal 6C: Increase Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 
influence regionally 

Task Team Timeline Status Notes 

Obj. 1: Effectively develop a secure culture in line 
with CPF&Rs mission, vision, and values. 

Influence Short Paused 
On hold per Chief Olson—COVID-19 
Pause. 

Obj. 2: Effectively advocate the interests of the 
District at the local, state, and national levels. 

Influence Mid Paused 
On hold per Chief Olson—COVID-19 
Pause. 

Obj. 3: Collaborate with regional partners on shared 
interests. 

Influence Mid, ongoing Paused 
On hold per Chief Olson—COVID-19 
Pause. 

 

  

20



 Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Strategic Plan Update, 2020 

  PAGE 17  

Task Team  Members 

Communication Garner-Lead, Otto, Rudebaugh 

Culture Ferrier-Lead, Brunton, Kamke, D 

Human Relations  Harruff-Lead, Severe, Brown, J 

Recognition  Resop-Lead 

Standards  Sobole-Lead, Rioux, Burke, Smith R 

Facilities & Equipment  Stueve, P, Simanjuntak, Carter-Hoskinson 

Revenue  Resop 

Finance Robacker 

Succession Plan  O'Toole, Kondra, Sobole 

Career Path  Best, Girt 

Enrichment  Escobedo, Noll, McAfee 

Risk Reduction Public Educator (TBD) 

Prevention Lorenz, Annis-Levings 

Community Planning Cooley, Roger CSV, Menge, Ron CSV 

Master Plan  Power, Brown, T 

EMS Bouchard-Lead, Fox, Cokl 

Fleet Services Workman, Reseck 

Community Outreach Jaurigue-Lead, Farias, Poe 

Media Hyatt 

Allied Agency  Courtney, L-Lead 

District Support  Rosenlund-Lead, Auvil, Lipke 

Regionalization  Cokl, Stueve P., Watamura, Sobole-726, Chief Olson 

Influence Chief Olson 

 

21



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 1 of 3                                                                                                   January 25, 2021  Board Meeting Minutes 

CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

January 25, 2021 
 
 
Chair Holm called the Regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners for Central 
Pierce Fire & Rescue to order by Zoom webinar at 5:06 p.m. Present were Chair Holm, 
Commissioners Stringfellow, Coleman, Willis and Eckroth, Ex-Officio/Mayor Door, Chief 
Olson, Deputy Chiefs Karns and Stueve, FD Robacker, HRD Washo, ITD Kay, 
Assistant Chiefs Kent, Bouchard, Overby, and Stueve, and Executive Assistant Porter, 
recorder.  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Willis seconded to approve the 
agenda. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
FIRE BENEFIT CHARGE PRESENTATION 
Chief Olson introduced Attorney Eric Quinn. Attorney Quinn provided an update on the 
Benefit Charge review and modernization project.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (FOR ITEMS NOT SPECIFICALLY ON THE AGENDA) 
No public comment.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA (SINGLE MOTION)  

A. Excused Absences:  
B. Minutes: Regular Board Meeting of January 11, 2021    
C. Approval of: 

 
Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Coleman seconded to approve 
the Consent Agenda including warrants totaling $1,186,666.99. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS (SECOND READING AND FINAL ACTION) 
No unfinished business. 
 
NEW BUSINESS (FIRST READING – FOR DISCUSSION AND REVIEW ONLY) 
No new business. 
 
CONSIDERATIONS AND REQUESTS  

A. ERF Budget - Fuel Delivery  
 
The fuel delivery system project overlapped fiscal years. Commissioner Stringfellow 
moved and Commissioner Willis seconded to authorize 2021 re-appropriation in the 

Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 55635 to 55635 totaling $ 692,786.00 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 55636 to 55659 totaling $ 290,530.59 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 55660 to 55702 totaling $ 203,350.40 

GRAND TOTAL $ 1,186,666.99 

22



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 2 of 3                                                                                                   January 25, 2021  Board Meeting Minutes 

amount of $158,000 from the Equipment Replacement Fund (ERF) Division 204 for fuel 
system replacement using beginning cash in the Fund. MOTION CARRIED.  
 

B. Cessation Letter  
 
CPFR has a resident that has been abusing 911 for several years without a change in 
behavior despite multiple resources and organizations attempting to intervene. A letter 
was created and vetted by Attorney Quinn to send to said resident. Commissioner 
Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Eckroth seconded to approve sending the letter 
of cessation to the high utilization resident. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
STAFF, LOCAL, FIREFIGHTERS’ ASSOCIATION AND FIRE CHIEF REPORTS (For 
Information Only) 
The following divisions provided a written report in the packet: 

A. Finance – FD Robacker.  
 

B. Field Operations – AC Kent included the December Operations/EMS Report. 
 

C. EMS – AC Bouchard. 
 

D. Prevention and Education – AC Overby recognized Amy Jackson for her 
continued hard work and stepping up to facilitate recent projects. 
 

E. Information Technology – ITD Kay included the 2020 KPI’s in his report. He 
recognized Sam Simanjuntak for completion of the server infrastructure work for 
the back-up software. He also recognized Justin Rudebaugh for his work on the 
network system upgrades. 
 

F. DC Administration – DC Karns. 
 

G. Fire Chief – Chief Olson clarified new Covid legislative action. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
No correspondence. 
 
COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
Ex-Officio/Mayor Door shared current Puyallup City Council topics of discussion. 
 
Commissioner Stringfellow volunteered to continue his involvement in the Puyallup 
Armory monument project.  
 
Commissioner Willis thanked AC Bouchard for the cessation letter. It was well-worded 
and we need to stop abuses that compromise response times for true emergencies. He 
expressed his appreciation of Attorney Quinn taking time to explain the benefit charge 
information. 
 

23



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 3 of 3                                                                                                   January 25, 2021  Board Meeting Minutes 

Commissioner Holm confirmed that Chief Olson will be retiring December 31, 2021. He 
would like discussion at the next meeting on how to continue with the process of 
selecting a new fire chief.  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  
At 6:12 p.m., Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Willis seconded to 
move into Executive Session for 15 minutes under RCW 42.30.110(1)(g) to review the 
performance of a public employee until 6:27 p.m.  
 
At 6:27 p.m., Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Eckroth seconded 
to return to Regular Session. MOTION CARRIED. No action was taken during 
Executive Session. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business, Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner 
Willis seconded to adjourn the meeting. MOTION CARRIED. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:28 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
            
MATTHEW HOLM    TANYA ROBACKER 
CHAIR OF THE BOARD   DISTRICT SECRETARY 
 
 
 
      
DIANNE PORTER 
RECORDER  

24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:   February 8, 2021  

Item Title:    Resolution No. 21-01 Region 5 All Hazard Mitigation Plan update 

Attachments:    CPFR Addendum to Region 5 All Hazard Mitigation Plan – 2020-2025 Edition 

Submitted by:   AC Kent 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

First reading  
Second reading  
Motion to approve  
For information only  
Other:  

 
SUMMARY:     
 
CPFR participates with our surrounding districts and Pierce County in a natural hazard 
mitigation plan for our region to comply with the Federal Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000. 
The act requires all applicants for sub-grants have an approved hazard mitigation plan 
in order to receive grant program funding. 
 
This plan identifies the natural hazards the district and region are susceptible to, risk 
reduction measures to be taken, and serves as a framework for decision makers on 
when or how we would commit our resources to reduce the effects of the 
hazard/disaster. The plan also requires a five-year review cycle and was last adopted 
by CPFR Board Resolution No. 15-03 on March 9, 2015. 
 
This resolution will adopt the Pierce County Region 5 All Hazard Mitigation Plan, 2020- 
2025 Update and Central Pierce Fire & Rescue’s addendum to this plan.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: n/a 

69



 

Resolution 21-01 Adopting the Region 5 All Hazard Mitigation Plan – 2020-2025 Edition And The Central Pierce Fire 
& Rescue Addendum To The Region 5 Hazard Mitigation Plan      Page 1 of 2 

CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-01 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS OF CENTRAL PIERCE 
FIRE & RESCUE, PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON, ADOPTING THE REGION 5 
ALL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN – 2020-2025 EDITION AND THE CENTRAL 
PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE ADDENDUM TO THE REGION 5 HAZARD MITIGATION 
PLAN 
 

WHEREAS, the Federal Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 requires that for all 
disasters declared on or after November 1, 2004, applicants for sub-grants following 
any disaster must have an approved Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan in accordance with 
44CFR 201.6 prior to receipt of Hazard Mitigation Grant Program project funding; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Federal Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 requires that for Pre-
Disaster Mitigation grant program project funding on or after November 1, 2003, 
applicants must have an approved Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan in accordance with 
44CFR 201.6 prior to receipt of project funding; and 
 

WHEREAS, the All Hazard Mitigation Plan Update represents the commitment of 
the Fire District along with other surrounding government entities to reduce the risks 
from natural, man-made and technological hazards, serving as a guide for decision 
makers as they commit resources to reducing the effects of hazards, and it is in the 
public interest to proceed with the planning process in a timely manner; and 
 

WHEREAS, Central Pierce Fire & Rescue has participated with the Pierce 
County Department of Emergency Management in the development of the District’s All 
Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, and recognizes the economic loss, personal injury, and 
damage that can arise from these hazards; and 
 

WHEREAS, reduction of these impacts can be achieved through a 
comprehensive coordinated planning process which includes an updated risk 
assessment that provides the factual basis for activities proposed in the mitigation 
strategies to reduce losses and vulnerabilities, a five-year cycle for plan maintenance, 
and documentation of formal adoption by Central Pierce Fire & Rescue; and 
  

WHEREAS, the 2020-2025 Region 5 All Hazard Mitigation Plan Edition All has 
been completed and approved by the State and the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners has reviewed and approved the All 
Hazard Mitigation Plan Update;  
 
 
 

70



 

Resolution 21-01 Adopting the Region 5 All Hazard Mitigation Plan – 2020-2025 Edition And The Central Pierce Fire 
& Rescue Addendum To The Region 5 Hazard Mitigation Plan      Page 2 of 2 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of Central 
Pierce Fire & Rescue, Pierce County, Washington, HEREBY RESOLVES as follows: 
 

Section 1.  The Region 5 Hazard Mitigation Plan, 2020-2025 Edition, is hereby 
adopted as set forth in Exhibit A, which is attached. 
 

Section 2.  The Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Addendum to the Region 5 Hazard 
Mitigation Plan, an update to the Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Natural Hazard 
Mitigation Plan, is hereby adopted and shall be in full force and effect upon passage 
and signatures hereon. 
 

ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS OF CENTRAL 
PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE, PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR 
MEETING HELD THIS   DAY OF     2021, OF WHICH ALL 
COMMISSIONERS WERE NOTIFIED AND   WERE PRESENT AND VOTING. 

 
 
 

             
Matthew Holm, Commissioner   Steve Stringfellow, Commissioner 
 
 
 
             
Rich Coleman, Commissioner    Bob Willis, Commissioner 
 
 
 
       ATTEST: 
Bill Eckroth, Commissioner  
 
             

Tanya Robacker, District Secretary  

71



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:  February 8, 2021  

Item Title:   Fire Chief Selection Process  

Attachments:    

Submitted by:  Chair Holm/Chief Olson 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     

 
Motion: To approve Chair Holm, BOC member ___________, and Chief Olson to 
acquire a firm to assist the BOC through the Fire Chief selection process with funding 
from the Commissioners Contingency Fund. 
 
 
With my retirement as Fire Chief at the end of the year, Chair Holm and I have met to 

discuss how to best provide the information and opportunity for deliberation the BOC 

may need to begin the process of selecting CPFR’s next Fire Chief. There are many 

items that need to be processed and considered and both of us believe it would be wise 

to have a consultant to work with the BOC from the beginning of the discussion. 

 

As a result, I am requesting a motion to approve Chair Holm, if available another BOC 

member, and myself to acquire a firm to assist the BOC through the process. If 

approved, I will be asking for funding from the Commissioners contingency to fund the 

effort. 
 

 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

72



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: 02-08-2021 

Item Title: Training Division Report 

Attachments: 2020 Training Hours 

Submitted by: AC Juarez 
 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:   

 

 

 

 

   
 

SUMMARY:     

 

 Attached is the training hours for 2020. This document compares 2020 against 2019 

training hours.  

 February is going to be a very busy, but fun month. The following are the training topics 

that your training division will be conducting: 

o Auto extrication (command & control) 

o Fire ground ops (commercial and residential) 

o Officer development  

o Professional development  

o Incident Commander certification (8 more members) 

 The training division continues to work and train on our new testing software  

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

 

 

73



              

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

36208

19872

7313

5264

2593

606

560

0 5000 10000 15000 20000 25000 30000 35000 40000

Total

Suppression

EMS

Blue Card

Hazmat

Officer Development

Tech Rescue

Total Training Hours - 2020

36208

19872

7313

5264

2593

606

560

37095

18650

7993

3959

4105

1037

1351

0 5000 10000 15000 20000 25000 30000 35000 40000

Total

Suppression

EMS

Blue Card

Hazmat

Officer Development

Tech Rescue

Total Training Hours - 2020 & 2019

2019 2020

Category 
2020 Total Training 

Hours 
2019 Total Training 

Hours  
2018 Total Training 

Hours 
Total 36208 37095 33766 
Suppression 19872 18650 17011 
EMS 7313 7993 7536 
Blue Card 5264 3959   
Hazmat 2593 4105 3888 
Officer Development 606 1037 4219 
Tech Rescue 560 1351 1112 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 

2020 TRAINING HOURS REPORT 

74



 

Shift Total Hours 
A Shift 6260 
B Shift 5630 
C Shift 5887 
Day Shift 1442 
Low Acuity 328 
On Extended Leave 325 
  19872 

 

 

 

Category 
2020 Total Training 

Hours 
2019 Total Training 

Hours 
2018 Total Training 

Hours 
Recruit Academy 7982 9968 10847 

 

 

6260

5630

5887

1442

328

325

0 1000 2000 3000 4000 5000 6000 7000

A Shift

B Shift

C Shift

Day Shift

Low Acuity

On Extended Leave

Total Training Hours - 2020 by Shift

7982

9968

10847

0 2000 4000 6000 8000 10000 12000

2020 Total Training Hours

2019 Total Training Hours

2018 Total Training Hours

Total Training Hours - Recruit Academy

75



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:  February 8, 2021Click here to enter text. 

Item Title:   Health & Safety Div. Report 

Attachments:    Click here to enter text. 

Submitted by:   AC McKenzie 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:    
 
As of this writing, we have 1 employee on 14-day quarantine related to Military deployment.  
 
Maintaining surveillance on current COVID conditions.   

 Pierce County has seen a down turn in daily cases as well as 14-day case rate. 

 Hospitalizations continue to slowly decline as compared to previous months. 
 
Pierce County has been upgraded to Phase 2.  Only impact on CPFR – changes fitness 
facilities occupancy.  Moves to 25% of rated capacity. 
 
WA DOH/TCPHD has moved vaccines process online to PhaseFinder.  This site determines 
your phase, and provide links to vaccination sites. 
 
We had a member with an exposure to products from a chemical fire, is being followed up by 
their primary care physician. 
 
H&S coordinated with WPFR on Hazmat fire with contaminated equipment left at scene which 
could not be adequately decontaminated.  
 
CPFR provided ALS standby for Mobile vaccine clinic on 01/28 (2000), 02/03 (3000), 02/04 
(3000). 
 
CPFR is participating in TPCHD vaccination teams for adult care facilities (70). 
 
3 OSHA injuries to report - 1 drill ground, 1 retrieving gear from medic Unit, 1 lifting patient. 
 
H&S Purchased 45 (45min) SCBA cylinders to replace cylinders expiring 1st quarter of year. 
 
 

76



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 
 

 
 
Conducting Noise audit through WA Audiology at 5 Stations (sample). 
 
A/C McKenzie completed the Fire Department Safety Officers Assn. Probroard HSO/ISO 
certification.   
 
Purchase new EMS and Issued new glasses that meet ANZI87.1 standard.  
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

77



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:   February 8th, 2021   

Item Title:    Logistics Update 

Attachments:      

Submitted by:   AC Stueve 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     

 

 Central Stores – we are in process of utilizing our Facility improvement funds to 

make some overdue repairs to this building. 

o Currently awaiting last bid for furnace replacement. 

o Generator replacement – due to manufacturing delays, we have a rough 

estimate of “February” for arrival of the transfer switch. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
 

78



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 
 

Agenda Date    February 8, 2021 

Item Title:    Human Resources Division Report 

Attachments:     

Submitted by:   Suzi Washo 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

First reading  
Second reading  
Motion to approve  
For information only  
Other:  

 
SUMMARY:     

 
Recruitment 

 Entry Level update 
o 569 scheduled their test 
o 520 took the exam 

 501 passed 
o The top 196 candidates were invited to interview the week of January 18th  

 188 interviewed 
 72 passed 
 Top 30 are moving onto the next steps 

  
 Promotional Processes update 

o Battalion Chief process began with orientation on January 26th. 
 The process will run through February and March 
 Anticipate bringing you an eligibility list on March 22nd  

o Captain and Lieutenant will begin late March/early April 
 

 Paramedic School Process 
o Currently running the process to identify three personnel to send to Paramedic School for 

the 2021-2022 school year 
 

 Deputy Fire Marshal Processes 
o Currently running a short process to appoint an interim DFM 
o Currently running the normal process to create a new DFM eligibility list that will be 

effective July 1, 2021 (the current list expires 6.30.2021) 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
N/A 

79



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: 02/08/2021 

Item Title:  Written Report – DC Operations 

Attachments:      

Submitted by E. Stueve 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

First reading  
Second reading  
Motion to approve  
For information only  
Other:  

 
SUMMARY:     
 
 Operations is pursuing regional cooperation on the implementation of Intterra (our budgeted 

analytics platform).  We are hosting our neighbors for an implementation planning session 
early this month. 
 

 Operations has provided Fitch & Associates all initial elements for our EMS Assessment.  
We have just begun the process of clarification based on the first wave of information 
requests.  Dianne Porter and Ashley Becker have done outstanding work to facilitate. 
 

 The Duty Chief policy has been updated and posted.  The chief officers will now call and 
leave messages with the Chairman and Co-Chair for significant events. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
N/A 

80



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:  February 8, 2021  

Item Title:   Fire Chief’s Report  

Attachments:    

Submitted by:  Chief Olson 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     

 
Effectively Respond, Continuously Improve, Compassionately Serve 

 
Board of Fire Commissioners: 
 
1. South Sunrise Appeal: Attorney Sitkin has received a response from the developer 

requesting a 6-month delay to give them time to consider and develop our proposal. I 
gave approval for the time requested as we want them to be successful in their business 
options if possible.  
 

2. Planning Commission Meeting: I am attending a meeting to promote language that at 
the policy level within the Comp Plan directs the review and development of fire codes 
to address changes within the subarea plans. 
 

3. Fire Chief Vacation: I will be on Vacation beginning February 15th for a couple of 
weeks. I will be going to Palm Desert like last year, we’ll see how that works out this 
year. Chief Karns will be the Acting Chief in my absence. I will be available by phone or 
email throughout the trip unless disruption of service occurs during travel. 
 

4. 2021 Operational Goals: I am working closely with the Deputy Chiefs on the final draft 
of the 2021 Operational Plan. We are attempting to prioritize the most important items 
and focus on them before the end of the year. 
 

5. Fire Code Changes: I met with MBAPierce, Pierce County Planning, and the Pierce 
County Fire Marshal’s Office to answer questions about the Fire Code Amendments. 
MBAPierce’s main concerns were items added by the PC Fire Marshal and Planning 
and I actually agreed with MBAPierce’s concerns. The PC Fire Marshal is making 
adjustments to the draft. I think these will be in front of the PC Council soon with very  

81



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 2 of 2 

 
 

little concern. This has been an incredible finessing and sheparding by all parties to get 
them to this point. 
 

6. Fire Prevention Staffing: Because of a longer term illness of one of the DFM’s and 
then a week later the individual on the current promotional list also being diagnosed with 
a long term illness, we have a staffing pinch that needs to be addressed. Staffing 
capacity is challenged in two ways. The first is the technical need for HazMat 
inspections routinely completed in the first quarter. The second is the longer term 
staffing capacity to perform the work required in the Puyallup Contract. I worked with 
Chiefs Overby and Karns and will need to do the following: 

 
a. We have met with Local 726 and will do an immediate process to find an interim 

replacement and will begin the testing process to update the promotional list when 
it expires July 1. 

b. We will hire retired CPFR DFM Cliff Iotte to bring the HazMat expertise need to 
train DFM Worley. This move will give us better reliability by having two DFM’s 
trained to performed this specialized work. I will bring the funding request to you at 
the mid-year budget update. We need to move quickly to not get significantly 
behind. 

 
7. IT Consortium: I have a meeting scheduled with the impacted Chiefs after I return from 

Vacation in March. 
 

8. PCSORT/PCHIT: The strategic assessment is moving forward with the selection of AP 
Triton to perform this forward thinking analysis. The goal is to identify long term, how 
should Pierce County provide HazMat and rescue services in a sustainable and cost 
effective manner. There are multiple teams in the County and the work is very expensive 
for the amount of calls. The question CPFR has initiated is: We all have to have a 
response capability, but do we need multiple systems covering a small amount of work? 
 

9. Benefit Charge Modernization Update: From the last BOC meeting, we are continuing 
to work on items. Our next scheduled meeting with the Quinns will be in March after I 
return from vacation. 
 

10. COVID-19: 
a. Emergency Declaration- No changes from previous meeting.  The authority has not 

been exercised during the previous two-week period. I will continue to report any 
uses of the declarations authority. 

b. We continue to have employees quarantined or in isolation from community based 
exposure.  

c. Because Pierce County has transitioned to Phase 2, we are now allowing crews to 
go to the grocery stores and allowing a higher capacity (25%) in our workout 
rooms. 

d. Governor Proclamation-Public Meetings: The Governor has extended indefinitely 
the no public meetings until other action is taken or the State of Emergency is 
removed for the State of Washington.  

82



1

Dianne Porter

Subject: FW: Commendable Performance Incident CPF21001184

From: Timothy J. Rioux  
Sent: Monday, January 25, 2021 11:52 AM 
To: Jeff Power <JPower@Centralpiercefire.org> 
Cc: Stephanie Glass <Sglass@centralpiercefire.org>; Diane Hyatt <DHyatt@Centralpiercefire.org>; Joshua A. Luke 
<JLuke@Centralpiercefire.org> 
Subject: Commendable Performance Incident CPF21001184 

 
Chief Power, 
 
I'm forwarding this information trying to adhere to the Policy for recognizing employee performance. 
 
On January 14, 2021 E72 and M72 responded to a call at Willow Gardens for an elderly female with altered 
mental status. On our arrival, the patient was found sitting in her chair covered in diarrhea. The chair and floor 
around her were also covered in diarrhea. Her condition required a transport to the emergency room. The 
staff at scene seemed overwhelmed. The decision was made to decontaminate the patient before transport. 
The crew took an organized and professional approach to the task‐on top of providing the patient reassurance 
and kindness. The patient verbalized her embarrassment and the crew was supportive and calm even while 
completing a very difficult job. Once completed, the decontamination allowed the transporting medic and the 
staff at the emergency room to focus on the priority care this patient needed. 
As professionals, we tend to take most things on emergency calls in stride. We train for many scenarios 
involving fire, trauma, and medical emergencies. The conditions the crew encountered on this call required 
them to draw on their own compassion, professionalism, and empathy. Their actions were more than just 
doing their duty. 
The crew that day was: 
Acting Lieutenant Josh Luke 
FF Shaun Cuthbert 
FF Joseph Snyder 
FF Jeremy Mangan 
FF Fabien Teyssedre 
 
Happy to answer any questions. This crew did a great job. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Tim Rioux 
M72‐A 
 
 

83


	1 - 2021-02-08 Board Agenda DRAFT
	3A1 - AIS - Strat Plan
	3A2 - Central Pierce 2020 SP Update Report
	5B - 2021-01-25 Board Meeting Minutes DRAFT
	5c - 2020-12-28 Board Meeting Minutes DRAFT
	7A1 - AIS - Region 5 Plan
	7A2 - 21-01 Adopting Region 5 and CPFR  Plan
	8A - AIS - Fire CHief selection
	9A1 - AIS - Training
	9A2 - 2020 Training Hours Report
	9B - AIS -HS
	9C - AIS LOGISTICS
	9D - AIS- HR Report
	9E - AIS - DC Ops
	9F - AIS - CHief
	10A - Corres1



